UNITED NATIONS

GENERAL
ASSEMBLY

Distr.
GENERAL

A/AC.97/8R.4

15 June 1959
ENGLISH
ORIGINAL: FREECH.

UNITED NATIONS COMMISSIGN ON PERMANENT SOVEREIGNTY
OVER NATURAL RESOURCES

First Session
SUMMARY RECORD OF THE FOURTH MEETING

Held at Headquerters, New York,
on Thursday, 21 Mey 1959, at 10.50 a.m.

CONTENTS

" Programme and organizetion of the work of the Commission
(A/4C.97/1, 2 and 3) (continued)

59-13710 - [oos



Bf dSey () Otlet

English
Pgge 2
PRESENT:
Chairman: Mr. GAMBOA (Philippines)
Repporteur: . Mr. ABDEL-GHANI United Arab Republic
Members: Mr. PAZHWAK Afghanistan
Mr. PINOCHET Chile
Mr. HERRARTE Guatemala
Mr. SCHURMANN Netherlends
Mr. BRILLANTES Philippines
Mr. PETREN Sweden
Mr. SAPOZHNIKOV Union of Soviet Socialist
. Republics
Mrs RAYMOND United States of America
Representativas of specialized agencies:
Mr. METALL International Labour Organisation
. Mr. ACHARYA Food and Agriculture Organization
Secretariatb: Mr. SCEACHTER Director, Genersl Iegal Division
Secretary of the Commission

Mr. FABRY

foee



AfACY(/SRU
English
Pege 3

- FROGRAMME AND ORGANIZATION OF THE WORK OF THE COMMISSION (A/AC.97/1, 2 and 3)
(continued)

Mr. PAZHWAK (Afghenisten) seid that the Commission must organize its
work with a view to the most effective performance of the task entrusted to
it by the Genersl Assembly. Referring to operstive paragrephs 1 and 2 of
General Assembly resolution 1314 (XIII), he said that the Commission had to decide,
firstly, who was to undertake the task of securing the necessary information;
secondly, what aspects of the question were to be cgvered by the proposed survey;
thirdly, whet areas of the world should be included, and fourthly, the date by
which the survey should be completed to enable the Commissica tc make the
necessary recommendations.

The Afghan delegation considered that the Secretariat could be asked to
assemble the necessary information, with the co-operation of the Govermments
of Member States, the regionel economic commissions end the specialized agencies.
He regretted that the specialized sgencies had not shown greater interest in
such an important question and found it surprising thet they had given no
explanation of their non-participation, in spite of the General Assembly's
explicit invitetion; he considered that appropriate measures should be taken
to request en explanation.

The Commission would not be eble to make practical and realistic
recommendations unless it had comprehensive information on all agpects of the
question, and it must have a full knowledge of the prevaeiling conditions if
it was to be able to carry out its task. Something more than a mere compilation
of existing legislation was clearly required and the Commission should be able
to count on the co-operation of both the Office of legel Affairs and the
Depertment of Economic and Social Affairs.

With regard to the geogrephical scope of the study, the Afghan delegation
considered that attention should be concentrated on the under-developed areas
and the Non-Self-Governing Territoriee. It should be emphasized that the latter
term, as used in the United Nations did not include certain areas which it was
nevertheless important not to exclude from & study of the exercise of the right
of peoples and rations to self-determination. That point should not be
overlooked, since the Goneral Assembly hed decided to establish the Commission

fooo



B/ACY (/SR b
English
Page U4

(Mr. Pazhwek, Afghanistan)

precisely in order that there should be a body competent to deal with certain
questions that were outside the temmrs of reference of other bodies. The study
should also cover all ereas of the world. ) ‘

The Afghan delegation hed no specific suggestion to meke regarding the
numbher of sessions the Commission gshould hold or on the time-table of its work.
The Secretariat should, however, be given enough time to make a comprehensive
study and should have clear terms of veference: He would put forward suggestions
on those points at the end of the general debate. ’

In conclusion, he said that his delegation, which was aware of the contribution
that international co-operation could make to the economic development of the
under-duveloped countries and staunchly supported the right of peoples to
gelf-determination, felt in duty bound to call on all members of the Commission,
especielly the representatives of the econcmically developed countries, to
organize the Commission's work in such a way as to facilitate yracticel '
recommendations that would effectively strengthen the permanent sovereizaty

of peoples and nations over their natural wealth end resources.

Mr. ABDEL-GHANI (United Arab Republic) said that the General Assembly
had established the Commission and defined its terms of reference in
resolution 131k (XIII), because the need had been felt to look into & nev end
fer-reaching subject of which no detailed study hed thus far been made, The
full scope of that resolution could be understood only in relation to the '
provisions of the‘charter, in particular Article 13, vhich defined the purpose of
studies initiated and recommendstions made by the General Assembly, and

Lxticle 55 on intefnational economic end social co-operstion. In cerrying out
its task, the Commission should be guided by those two Articles; in éther words,
the principal purpose of the survey that the Commission had been asked to make
should be to promoté péaceful end friendly relations among nations based on
reapect for the principle of equal rights and self-determination of peoples, from
ooth the economic and roliticel stondpoint. _

The under-developed countries, had refuted the idea that exercizing tke right
of economic salf-détermination was likely to hinder the flow of foreign capital
to their countries. Those Governments ﬁere taking all possible measures to

encourage foreign investments necessary for their economic development. In that

[eoe



A/AC.9T7/SR.4
English
Page 5

(Mr. Abdel-Ghani, United Arab Republic)

connexion he referred to the various measures taken to that effect by the Government
of the United Arab Republic. He asserted that vpholding the inherent right of all
peoples to economic self-determination wes an effective way of promoting
international co-cperation in the economic field and ceusequently, for accelerating
the process of economic development of the under-developed countries.

With regard to the scope and nature of the survey, he agreed with the
representative of the Soviet Union that the Commission should not confine itself to
a purely academic study and that its work should cover the practical as well as the
legal aspects of the question. Such an interpretation was in accordance both with
the General Assembly resolution and with the statement by the Secretary-General's
representative. The General Assembly had not confined itself in its resolution
solely to the legal aspects of the question, since it had stressed the importance
of international co-operation in the economic development of under-developed
countries and had invited the co-operation of the regional economic commissions and
the specialized agencies.

During the general debate, several members of the Commission had attempted to
define the principles that should guide the Secretariat, a matter in which the
delegation of the United Arab Republic also wished to comment. Firstly, although
there were many sources of information open to the Secretariat, it should not
overlook one of the most readily available, namely, United Nations documents. The
General Assembly hed adopted several resolutions relating directly or indirectly to
the task entrusted to the Commission, such as resolution 626 (VII) on the right to
exploit freely natural weslth and resources, Economic and Social Ccuncil
resolution 144 C (VII) on the restoration and development of the economy of the
countries of Asia end the Far East, and the preamble of Generel Lssembly
resolution 523 (VI) on integrated economic development and commercial agreements.
It would be remembered that in e well-known netionalization case a Rome court had
based its decision on Generel Assembly resolution 626 (VII); the General Assembly's
recommendations were thus not entirely without effect, end the Secretariaet, rather
than confining itself to a mere compilation, should attempt to determine how far
those recommendetions were serving to strengthen the right of peoples to self-
determination and their sovereignty over their natural resources.

It was essential that the survey should include Non-Self-Governing and Trust
Territories, which were of particular concern to the United Nations. The General

Assembly had referred in its resolutions to the permanent sovereignty of /



A/AC.9T/SR. 4
English
Page 6

(Mr. Abdel-Ghani, United Arab Republic)

"peoples and nations", not to that of independent States. In so doing, the
Assembly had based itself on the draft Covenants on Human Rights, and in that
connexion it should be recalled that the right of peoples to economic self-
determination was explicitly recognized in the text adopted by the Third Committee,
as it had also been in the original text of the Commission on Human Rights. The ‘
general debate hed shown that there vas no difference of opinion in the Commission
on that point; it was therefore only 1ogical that the proposed survey should deal
with the extent to which dependent peoples effectively exercised their right of
sovnreignty over their natural wealth. Relevant informatior on that question was
contained in the records of the Trusteeship Council, the Fourth Committee of the
General Assembly, and the Committee on Information from’ Non-Self-Governing
Territories, end also in petitions submitted to the United Nations. The
Trusteeship Council, had, in particular, considered two cases of flagrent violation
of the right of permanent sovereignty over natural wealth and resources, one
concerning a tribhe in Tanganyike, and the other the people of the Territory of
Neuru. In addition, the Committee on South west Africa would be submitting to the
General Assembly a report which should certainly be included among the documents
to be studied.

It would also be appropriate to examine ‘the regional arrangements vhich in
some respects governed the eyer01se of the right of sovereignty over certain
naturgl resources. States parties to such new types of agreement as the treaties
establishing the European Coal and Steel Community, EURATOM or the European
Economic Community voluntarily relinquished pzrt of their sovereignty over their
netural resources and renounced the exercise cf certain of their rights, in the
common interest. But proposals by certain Powers tha: the Non-Self-Governing
Territories they administered should participate in such'arrangements'could'har&ly
te described as a voluntary relinquishment of sovereignty by those Territories.
Those were questions to which the Commission would have to devote its attention.

The Commission should also examine intexnational sgreements by whieh.States
rermitted aliens to exploit certain natural resources. In conducting such an
.investigetion, the Commission should remember that the world did not stand'still,
end that the ides that such agreements were something immutsble and sacrosanct wae

out of date. Just as States amended their laws or enacted new laws to meet new

/e



A/AC.97/SR.b
English
Page 7

(Mz. Avdel-Ghani, United Areb Republic)

developments, so in the intexrnetionel field smell nations now wished to free
themselves of agreements concluded at a period when circumstances had been entirely
different from those of today, and which gave foreign enterprises certain rights
end ccncessions vhich were incompatible with the interests of the national economy.

Mr. BRILLANTES (Philippines) sald that in order to organize its werk
the Commission must know exactly what it could and should do. Under General
Assembly resolution 131L (XIII) its purpose was twofold: to conduct & survey
end, "vhere necessary", to make recommendastions.

Such & survey should clearly be related to facts derived from the laws and
agreements in force. Member Govermnments, the regional commissions and the
specialiéed agencies could bte asgked to co~operate ir obtaining them. It would be
necessary to gather all information of value bearing on the constitutions and laws
of States and on international treaties and agreements; but it would also be
necessary to show how such texts were interpreted and applied in practice, both
netionally and internationally, and to make a specisl study of Judicisal,
sdminigtrative and arbitral decisions.

The Commission should also beer in mind the fact that it would have to mske
recoumendations, and that they would necessarily depend upon the information znd
data obtained, The Commission must decide et the outset Just what kind of
information it wanted, since it would be unable to submit suitable recommendations
unless it was in possession of full information on the present situation. It was
in appraising thet situation that the real difficulties would arise.

He asked who would decide whether the right of sovereignty needed
strengthening. If that was the responsibility of the peoples and nations

concerned, it might well be asked whether it was not also for them to propose the
measures to be taken to that end. If, on the other hand, the Commlesion were to
rile on the question, would it not be obliged to assume the role of spokesmen for
the people or nation concerned, or even that of judge?

General Assembly resolution 1314 (XIII) referred to the importance of
international co-ocperation in the economic development of under-developed areas.
It was evident that co-operation could not be unilateral and it wes also clear
that the nstion concerned was the best judge of what its economic development
should be and how it should be achieved. The General Assembly resolution

[oeo



A/AC.9T/SR.k
English
Pege 8

(Mr. Brillantes,. Philipvines)

established a link vetween sovereignty and economic development; that link
consisted of due regard for the rights of Staves and internationel co-operaticn,
The quesiion arose wnether such internationel co-operstion was compatible with the.
permanent scvereignty of ‘peoples and nations over their naturel resources, vwhether
it amounted to a derogation from such sovereignty or whether it constituted an
exercise of such sovereignty. The Charter regerded internetionel co-operction as
both a right and & duty. It affinmed both the importaﬁcé:of_interngt;gnal
co-operation in solving internationel probvlems of an economic, sccial cultural or
humanitarian chargcter (Artic’e 1 (3)) and the principle of sovereign equality
(Article 2 (1)): It was evident that international co-operation could best be
promoted by the appllcation of the principle of covereign equality but, in theé cese
cf the economic developmenu of undP;-developed areas and of the sovereignty of their
reoples over their natural wealth it vas doubt’ul whether it wbuld be as easy to
apply that principle as it vas to affirm it.

The Cnmmissvon should remember that natlons were living in an interrctional
community which wes more closely inuer-dependenu than ever before, and it should
not overlook the fact that international co-operetion must be aﬂcepted volun»-rily
and not imposed. In undertaking the survey and in drafting its recommendaulonq,
it should maintain a balance between zeel end hard facts. His delegetion regaraed
the plan of study praposed by the Secretariat as & useful su*de, though not

necessarily exclusive of other approaches.

Mr. SCHURMANN (Netherlands)said ithat he would speak at greater length
whea the Commission deslt with the substance of the subject at the next session and

vhen the Secretarist had provided it with the necessery dauta. He was in egreement
with the Director of the ‘- neral Legal Division concerning the documentation the..
Secretariat would be able .o provide. In his opinion, such documentation should
contaln a comprehensive summery of national laws and reguletions goveraning the
owaership and use of land, subsoil and weter resources in Member..States, with
special emphasis on the measures perteining to the rights of foreign nagtionals to
own or exploit the natural rescurces of those countries and the conditicns under,
which such rights were granted. It-should:also contein a study of bilaterel and, .
multilaterel treaties concerned with rights granted to the nationals of

one State to engage in gainful occupsations or to esteblish enterprises

in the territory of another, and with the conditions under which such

nationals could exploit the natural resources of the ocher State. In eddition, /“'



A/AC.9T/SR.L
English
Page 9

(Mr. Schurmann, Netherlands

there shquld be & study of international laew relating to sovereignty over natural
wealth and the r;ghts’and obligations of States in the fleld of foreign investments.
As had béen poihtéd out, in particular by the Swedish representative, it was
important, under the teims of resolution ljlh (XIII) that the documentation should
enable the Comm*ssion to make & full survey of international rules governing
expropriation, the property rights of foreign nationels and the obligetion to
avoid disarimiﬁétion end to pay prompt, adequate and effective compensation.

If the Secretarist could furnish the Commiseion with documentetion along

those lines, the Commission would be able to submit the questions of substance
to & thorough debate.

Mr. SAPOZENIXOV (Union of Soviet. Socialist Republics) recalled the
comments he had made at the second meeting on the document submitted by the
Secretariat (A/AC.97/3).

The survey called for unizr General Assembly resolution 131k (XIII) did not
need to desl with the form of ownership within States, a matter exclusiwvely
within their own jurisdiction; it should be kept on a strictly international
plane, The Secretariat's agresment on that point was not spparent from the summary
record of the meeting in question and he wished 1t to be confirmed.

It wes essentlal that the documentetion should go beyond a mere enumerstion
of legal iexts; other delegations had already stated that they wanted factual
informetiur: and an account of the real situation. The survey should show whether
there haed been any violations of the principle of sovereignty over natural wealth -
and, i1f so, vhat they were. Without such information, the Commission would be
uneble to meke recommendations., Some very veluable indications of the nature of
such violations were already aveilable; such viclations could be cloasked with
legality. Some forelgn compenies exceeded the rights granted to them under
agreements, or the agreements deliberately disguised their complete domination. He
egreed with the observations submitted to the Commission on the eveolution of
international law., It was clear that some asgreements were out of date.

Certain problems, and in particular that of the alienation of lend, were very
acute in the Non-Self-Governing Territories. Under discriminatory laws or even
without any legal Jjustification, some Administering Authorities took their lands
away from the indigenous inhsbitants in order to lease them to foreilgn companies,

[oae




A/AC.9T/SR. b
English
Page 10

(Mr. Sapozhnikov, USSR)

vhich thus secured the lion's share for themselves while the people lived under
eppalling conditions. In some cases theilr very existence was threatened bty the
complete exhaustion of their resources. The representative of the United Areb
Republic hed mentioned Nauru and South West Africa as specific examples. Others
could be given. Moreover, that representative's comments on the Non-Self-Governing
Territories in the European Economic Community were completely justified. All those
examples served to show that the survey could not be solely legal and that it ought
to contain factual information which would enable the Commission to form an opinion.
The work of the Secretariat and of the Commission itself should be directed to that
end,

Regarding the orgenization of the work, the United States representative had
sald that the Secretariat should send a questionnaire t> Governments, That would,
however, tie its hands, and it should be free to use all the means at its disposal
for the collectl on of the necesaary information. If, in scme cases, the
Secreterliat felt it would serve a useful purpose to approach a Government, there was
no objection to 1lts so doing. The co-operstion of the regional econcmic commissions
end the specialized agencies would also be velusble, and it was to be regretted that
soze of the latter were not represented,

In any case, it was too early to settle all the questions at issue and it would
be tetter to concentrate on the broad outlines of the survey.

From the prectical point of view it would be edviseble to concentrate especially
on the regions in which the problem occurred in the most scute form. Mainly on
practical grounds, but also for reasons which went to the very keart of the problem,
1t was necessary to devote asttention first of all to the under~developed countries
and the Non-Self-Governing and Trust Territories, while it wes perhaps unnecessary
to carry out an inguiry in the highly developed countries, svch as the Uzited States
and gome European countries. It was not a question of restricting the study
& priori but of selecting the most practical approach; if the Secretariat collected
the type of documentation he had indicated, namely, a documentation which was not

confined to the legel aspect of the problem, the Commission would have a sound basis
for 1ts decisions.

Joee



A/AC.97/sR.b
English
Page 11l.

Mr. RAYMOND (United States, of America).explained that.he hed never
intended that any restriction should be placed on the Secretariat's working nmethods.,
The Secretariat should be absolutely free, .1f the need arose, to fill in the gaps
in repiies from Governments by drawing on. information from other scurces. He hed
meant merely that all States should be given the opportunity to provide the-
Secretariat with information on their legislation. ‘

" As refarence had‘been made to the need to tske into acnount other General
Assembly resolutions which had a bearing on the Commission's survey, he.drew ,
axtention to the terms of General Asaembly resolution 1318 (X111), concerning the
promotion of the international flow of private capital. The report which the
Secretary-General was requested to prepare under thet resolution would certainly
be of great interest to the Commission, since it dealt with one of the questions
with which it had to concern itself. Reports of this tyre would be moré useful ,
to the Commission than an sttempt by the Secretary-General to report on violations.
With regard to alleged violations, one should not overlook the fact that neither
the Commission zor the Secretariat was a judiclal body. ' .

Mr. METALL (International Labour Orgasnisetion) said that-the ILO had
shown its great interest in the Commission's deliberations by sending a
representative to the current session. Both the International Labour Organisation
and the International Labour Office would deem it = duty. and a pleasure to
colleborate with the Commission and tke Secretariat and, inter alia, were making A
availeble to them the documentatlon they had assembled, .

Mr. SCHACHTER (Secretariat) assured the USSR representative that he
agreed with him on the kind of study .which. should be underteken and thet the
summary record would be corrected to teke his observetions into account.' The
Secreteriat's study would be concerned with the right of foreign nationals to own
or exploit the natural resources of a country not their own and on the means by
which the State could control their sctivities. It was only in so far as the
nationel legislation applied to foreigners thet the Secretariat would feel it
should study the principles applicable in each eountry to the ownership of nstural
resnurces,

As regards the collaboration of the regionsl economic commissions, to which
the General Assembly resolution had been duly trenemitted, he pointed out that they

[ooe



A/AC.9T/SR.4
English
Page 12

(Mr. Schachter, Secretariat)

had their own programmes of work, which were already very heavy, and that neither
.the Commission nor the Secretariet could invite them to underteke new surveys. The
Commigsion could only request them to “ransmit to it the information vhich they
had élready collected or the studies which they were currently engaged in.

While it was true that the sgreements on the exploitation of natural
fesources adld not always reflect the sctual facts of the situation, he did not see
how the Secretariast could institute an inquiry into possible violations. Perhaps
the USSR representative had meant that the Commission should undertake such an
investigation. The Secretariat, for its part, had to confine itself to consulting
officigl publications and the documentation available to it and to requesting
information from Governments.

Moreover, the Secretariat's study should not duplicate other reports, such as
the one mentionéd by the United Stetes representative or the publications on the
Non-Self-Governing Territories. The Secretariat would be able to refer to the
relevent passages in those documents in its study.

Mr. SAPOZHNIKOV (Union of Soviet Socialist Republics) did not think that
the Secretariat should confine itself to obtalning informstion from Govermnments.
There were certainly Qpher sources on vwhich 1t would be able to draw, as it did
when 1t prepared the World Economic Survey and otker economic studies and reports
on specific problems. The Secretariat would be sble to find some information on
questions in which the Commission was interested in the reports of the
. Trusteeship Council and of the Administering Authorities and in letters from
petitioners.

#r. ABDELAGHANI (United Arab Republic) expressed the hope thet the
Secretariat would transmit to the regionsl economic commissicns the text of the
statements in which the members of the Commission had indicated how anxious they
were that those bodies should co-operate with the Commission and what they hoped
to gain from that collaboration.

[eoe



A/AC.9T/SR. b4
English
Page 13

(Mr. Abdel-Ghani, United Arab Republic)

Furtherm~re, since the Commission wﬁs an organ of the General Assembly and
was to report to the Economic and Social Council, everything seemed to indicate
that it could request the regional economic commissions to undertake studies on
permanent sovereignty over natural resources.

The CRAIRMAN said that at the next meeting he would attempt to sum up
the position and the views expressed concerning the study to be made by the
Secretariat, the questions to be addressed to Governments and possidbly to the
specialized agencies, and the date of the next session. Those were the three points
on which the Commission had to reach a decision before the end of the current
session.

The meeting rose at 12.50 p.m.






